ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

National ICT R&D Fund

PRELIMINARY

- 1. In these Articles, unless the context or the subject matter otherwise requires:
 - (a) "THE COMPANY" means "National ICT R&D Frind".
 - (b) "THE OFFICE" means the Registered Office for the time being of the company.
 - (c) "Act" means the Pakistan Telecommunication (Re-organization) Act, 1996 (XVII of 1996).
 - (d) "Authority" means Pakistan Telecommunication Authority.
 - (e) "Budgetary allocations" means the amounts released by the Federal Government from the R&D Fund to the Company in accordance with provisions of the Research and Development Fund Rules, 2006.
 - (f) "R&D Fund" means the Research and Develor nent Fund established under section 33 C of the Act.
 - (g) "Relevant licensee" means a licensee under the Act which is required under the terms of its licence to make the prescribed contribution to the R&D Fund.
 - (g) "THE DIRECTORS" mean the Directors for the sime being of the company.
 - (h) "THE SEAL" means the Common Seal of the company.
 - (i) "THE ORDINANCE" means the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
 - (j) "THE COMMISSION" means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
 - (k) "THE REGISTRAR" means the Registrar of Companies.
 - (I) "THE REGISTER" means the Register of the members to be kept in pursuant to Section 147 of the Ordinance.
 - (m) "CHIEF EXECUTIVE" means the Chief Executive Officer who may be designated as Executive Director.
 - (n) "SECRETARY" means the Company Secretary of the company.
 - (o) "MEMORANDUM" means the memorandum of association of the company.
 - (pl) "PERSON" includes an individual, company, corporation and body corporate.
 - (q) "ARTICLES" means the articles of association of the company.

- (r) "BOARD" means the board of directors of the company.
- (s) "YEAR" used in the context of financial matters shall mean financial year of the company.
- (t) Expressions referring to writing shall be construed as including references to typewriting, printing, lithography, photography and other modes of representing or reproducing words in visible form.
- (u) Words importing the singular number include the plural number and vice versa and words importing the masculine ger ler include the feminine gender.
- (v) Unless the context otherwise requires words or expressions contained in these Articles shall be of the same meaning as in the Ordinance or any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at which these Articles become binding on the company.

MEMBERSHIP

- 2. The number of members with which the Company proposes to be registered is three (3) but the minimum number of members shall not be, at any time, less than three (3). However, the directors may, from time to time, whenever the company or the business of the company requires, increase the number of members.
- 3. The company in General Meeting may from time to time lay down the qualifications and conditions subject to which any person or class of persons shall be admitted to membership of the company.
- 4. The rights and privileges of a member shall not be transferable and shall cease on his death or otherwise ceasing to be a member.
- 5. The subscribers to the memorandum and such other persons as the directors shall admit to membership shall be members of the company.
- 6. One person shall have the right to hold one membership.

ADMISSION TO MEMBERSHIP

- 7. The application for seeking membership of the company shall be required to be seconded by an existing member whereupon the board of directors shall decide the matter of his admission as member or otherwise within three months of making of such application. No minor or lunatic shall be admitted as a member of the company.
- 8. Every person, upon applying for admission to membership, shall sign an undertaking that he will, if admitted, so long as he is a member, duli observe the Articles of the company for the time being in force.
- 9. The Board shall subject to the Articles, accept or reject any application for admission to membership. The Board's decision shall be final and it shall not be liable to give any reasons thereof.

CESSATION / EXPULSION FROM MEMBERSHIP

- 10. A member renders himself liable to expulsion or suspension by the Board if:
 - (a) he refuses or neglects to give effect to any decision of the Board; or

- (b) he infringes any of the regulations of the Articles; &
- (c) he is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to have committed a fraud, or to be bankrupt, or to be insane or otherwise incompetent; or
- (d) he is held by the Committee of the company to have been guilty of any act discreditable to a member of the company; or
- (e) he is acting or is threatening to act in a manner prejudicial to the interest or functioning of the company or any other institute, body corporate, society, association or institution in which the company has an interest.
- 11. The company in general meeting may, on an appeal of the aggrieved member and after giving an opportunity of hearing, annul or modify the decision of the board with regard to expulsion of the member by resolution supported by two-thirds majority. The person expelled shall be reinstated as a member from the date of the resolution of the general meeting annulling the decision of the Board.
- 12. Termination of membership shall occur automatically:
 - (a) in the event of the death of a member; and
 - (b) in the event a member fails to pay any amount due by him to the company within three (3) months after such obligation has become due.

GENERAL MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS

13. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

A general meeting to be called annual general meeting, shall be held, in accordance with the provisions of Section 158, within eighteen (18) months from the date of incorporation of the company and thereafter once at least in every calendar year within a period of four (4) months following the close of its financial year and not more than fifteen (15) months after the holding of its preceding annual general meeting as may be determined by the directors.

14. OTHER GENERAL MEETINGS:

All other meetings of the members of the company other than an annual general meeting shall be called "Extraordinary General Meetings".

15. EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS:

The directors may, whenever they think fit, call an Extraordinary General Meeting, and Extraordinary General Meetings shall also be called on such requisition(s), as is provided by Section 159 of the Ordinance.

16. NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS:

Twenty-one (21) days notice at least (exclusive of the day on which the notice is served or deemed to be served, but inclusive of the day for which notice is given) specifying the place, the day and the hour of meeting and, in case of special business, the general nature of that business, shall be given in the manner provided by the Ordinance for the general meeting, to such persons as are, under the Ordinance or the Articles of the company, entitled to receive such notices from the

company but the accidental omission to give notice to or the non-receipt of notice by any member shall not invalidate the proceedings at any general meeting.

17. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

All business that is transacted at an extra ordinary general meeting and that is transacted at an annual general meeting with the exception of the consideration of the accounts, balance sheet and the reports of the director and auditors, the election of directors, the appointment of and the fixing of remuneration of the auditors shall be deemed special business.

18. QUORUM:

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members representing not less than twenty five percent (25%) of the total voting power present in person but being not less than two (2) r embers, is present at that time when the meeting proceeds to business.

19. EFFECT OF QUORUM NOT BEING PRESENT:

If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present, the meeting, if called upon the requisition of members, shall be dissolved and in any other case, it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the members present, shall be a quorum.

20. CHAIRMAN OF MEETING:

The chairman of the Board of directors, shall preside as chairman at every general meeting of the company, but if he is not present within fitteen minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairman, any of the directors present may be elected to be the chairman and if none of the directors present is willing to act as chairman, the members present shall choose one of their number to be the chairman.

21. ADJOURNMENT:

The chairman may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present (and shall if so directed by the meeting), adjourn the meeting from time to time but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty (30) days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. Save as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

22. VOTING:

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote to the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded. Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has, on a show of hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the book of the proceedings of the company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact, without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against that resolution.

23. DEMAND FOR POLL:

A poll may be demanded in accordance with the provisions of Section 167 of the Ordinance.

24. MANNER OF TAKING POLL:

If a poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in accordant with the manner laid down in Section 168 of the Ordinance and the result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

25. TIME OF TAKING POLL:

A poll demanded on the election of chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be taken at once.

26. CASTING VOTE:

In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll takes place, shall have and exercise a second or casting vote.

.27. VOTES OF MEMBERS:

On a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote and upon a poll every member present in person shall have one vote.

28. OBJECTION TO VOTE:

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given and tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRA TON

- 29. There shall be, for the overall management of the company's affairs, a Board of directors, which will be elected from amongst the members.
- 30. One term of the Board of directors would be for three years.
- 31. No person shall be appointed as a director if he is ine igible to hold office of director of a company under section 187 of the Ordinance.
- 32. No member / person shall hold more than one office in the company, such as those of Chief Executive / director or company secretary.

33. FIRST DIRECTORS:

The subscribers to the Memorandum of Association shall be the first directors of the company whose names are given below and they shall hold office until the election of directors in the first Annual General Meeting, subject to the provisions of Sections 174 and 176 of the Ordinance.

Farrakh Qayyum

- ii. Noor-ud-din Baqai
- iii. Ather Mehmood Khan

34. NUMBER OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors may consist of minimum of twelve (12) directors, who shall be nominated and appointed by the Federal Government and the Chief Executive Officer appointed by the Board shall be deemed to be the hirteenth (13th) director as provided in section 200 of the Ordinance. Out of the trielve (12) Directors to be nominated by the Federal Government:

- i. five (5) shall be ex-officio office bearers in the Federal Government;
- ii. one (1) shall be the chairman of the Authority,
- three (3) shall be selected from amongst the nominations made by the licensees;
- iv. two (2) shall be selected from amongst the rominations made by the scientific and academic community; and
- v. one (1) shall be a corporate management executive with management experience at a senior position in multinational or international companies.

35. PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS:

Subject to the provisions of section 178 and 183 of the Ordinance:

- i. after incorporation, the Federal Government shall appoint the remaining directors under Article 34(i) and (ii) above.
- ii. after the appointments made pursuant to Article 34(i) and (ii), the Federal Government, through Ministry of Information Technology IT & Telecommunications Division, shall advertise for filing of nominations for the directors to be appointed in pursuance of clauses (iii) and (iv) of Article 34.
- after the appointment of directors under article 34(i), the Secretary Ministry of Information Technology, shall appoint the committee of three directors to be called the "Selection Committee" for selecting the rest of the directors. The Selection Committee shall always have a majority of directors from the directors mentioned at article 34(i) above.

The Committee so appointed shall invite the applications for selection of three (3) directors under clause 34(iii) above from the following Licensees:

- a) Fixed Lines Operators;
- b) Cellular Operators; and
- c) Data Service Providers
- the Licensees, hereinabove mentioned for the rurposes of nomination and selection, are termed as industry segments. Each industry segment will have one representative on the board. The selection procedure would be announced by the Selection Committee for time trame during which a forum comprising members from the respective segments can submit one person as nominee. In case, no joint forum exists for a given segment, each company will individually nominate their member. Thereafter the Selection Committee would select one person each from all the nominations filed from an industry segment. In case of a joint forum, the nomination received would be taken as the final nomination. Selection Committee shall then forward the

names of the directors to the Federal Government for final selection. Federal Government directors reserve the right to appoint a director for a given industry segment even if he/she is not nominated given that they believe that the particular person can add more value to the board as compared to the nominated candidates. In case no nomination is received from the joint forum by the deadline set by the Committee, the Committee reserves the right to nominate a member at its own discretion (in case of a forum). In case of individual nominations (when no joint forum exists), no nominations received after the deadline would be entertained.

- v. for the purpose of selection under clause 34 (iv) above, the academia is divided into the following three disciplines:
 - a) Telecom;

xi.

- b) Information Technology; and
- c) Business Management.
- vi. the requisite two directors will be appointed from any two of these above three disciplines but both could not from the same discipline.
- the institutions from which the directors under Article 34 (iv) are selected must comprise of only HEC recognized universities and institutions with an established reputation for having a credible program in the filed of IT/Telecom/ Business Administration. The minimum qualification for a member should be 16 years of education. Federal Government will select the members. Federal Government may, at its sole discretion from a nominating committee to nominate a pool of potential candidates from which to select the members. Federal Government directors reserve the right to appoint a director for a given discipline even if he/she is not nominated given that they believe that the particular person can add more value to the board as compared to the nominated candidates.
 - viii. one director, under Article 34 (v) above from the corporate world, shall be appointed by the Selection Committee. The proposed director must be a corporate management executive with management experience at a senior position in multinational or international company. The Selection Committee, after receiving the applications, will nominate three candidates for this particular slot based on consideration given to exposure, experience, international profile and contributions made to the development of corporate governance practices. The Federal Government would then appoint one out of the three nominated candidates.
 - ix. no change in selection criteria would take place for future appointments except for the fact that the comprehensive selection procedures would involve recommendations of the whole board to the Selection Committee constituted under clause 35(iii). The process would be initiated at least three months before the end of the tenure of the directors appointed hereunder.
 - every person, industry segment, academia and corporate sector, upon applying for admission to directorship, shall sign an undertaking that he will, if admitted, so long as he is a director, duly observe the Articles of the Company for the time being in force and shall disclose his/her interests which may be contradictory to his/her own interests.
 - the Board shall subject to the Articles make recommendations to, accept or reject any application for admission either to membership or directorship. The Board's decision shall be final and it shall not be liable to give any reason thereof; and
 - the Board in consultation of the Federal Government may prescribe any other qualifications for admission to membership from time to time.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Directors appointed pursuant to Article 34 (iii) and (v) shall be designated as Independent Directors. The Independent Directors shall not be the employees of the Company. The Independent Directors shall satisfy the following criteria to qualify as Independent Directors:

- they shall be qualified in any discipline amongst the disciplines of telecommunication engineering, information and communications technology engineering, electrical engineering, corporate finance, management, law or economics, and shall have at least seven (7) years of active experience in operations, business or research in a professional, executive, academic or advisory capacity in any of the foregoing discipline; and
- neither they nor their spouse, descendants or relatives, or any business, undertaking, company, corporation, partnership, or enterprise in which they, their spouse, descendants or relatives are employees, directors, partners or shareholders or have any financial, ownership, management or participation interest, shall be an applicant for a project or recipient of grant or funds by the Company other than after a full-disclosure of such interest and subject to their abstention from voting at any meeting of the Board at which the application for the project or grant of funds or any other matter pertaining to such projects and grants is considered or voted upon.
- 37. Before the removal of an Independent Director prior to the expiry of his tenure, the reasons for such removal shall be circulated in writing to all the Board members and a meeting of the Board be convened after due notice which shall deliberate on the reasons for removal. The Independent Director, when being removed, shall have the right to participate in such meeting and address the Board on the reasons for his removal.
- 38. Upon the occurrence of a vacancy amongst the Independent Directors, the vacancy shall be filled by a Director who qualifies as an Independent Director.

39. CASUAL VACANCY AND ALTERNATE OR SUBSTITUTE DIRECTORS:

- (a) Any casual vacancy occurring among the directors except nominees of the Federal Government may be filled up by the directors within thirty days of the vacancy and the person so appointed shall hold office for the remainder of the term of director in whose place he is appointed.
- (b) An existing director may, with the approval of the board of directors, appoint an alternate director to act for him during his at sence from Pakistan of not less than three months. The alternate director se appointed shall ipso facto vacate office if and when the director appointing him returns to Pakistan.

40. REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR:

The company may remove a director through a resolution passed in a general meeting of members with a majority vote.

41. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD:

The directors may elect one of their members as the chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board but, if at any

meeting the chairman is not present within ten minutes after the time appointed for holding the same or is unwilling to act as chairman, the directors present may choose one of their member to be chairman of the meeting.

DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE BO ARD

- 42. The Board shall conduct and manage all the business affairs of the company, exercise all the powers, authorities and discretion of the company, obtain or oppose the application by others for all concessions, grants, charters and legislative acts and authorization from any government or authority, enter into such contracts and do all such other things as may be necessary for carrying on the business of the company, except only such of them as under the statutes and Articles are expressly directed to be exercised by general meetings and (without in any way prejudicing or limiting the extent of such general powers) shall have the following special powers and duties:
 - (a) To present to the general meeting of the company any matters which the directors feel are material to the company, its cojects or interests or affecting the interests of members and make suitable recommendations regarding such matters.
 - (b) To regulate, through articles, the admission of hembers.
 - (c) To appoint, remove or suspend the legal advisors, bankers, or other officers on such terms and conditions as they shall think fit and as may be agreed upon.
 - (d) To appoint any qualified person as a first auditor(s) subject to provisions of the Ordinance;
 - (e) To determine the remuneration, terms and conditions and powers of such appointees and from time to time, revoke such appointments and name another person of similar status to such office except for the auditor in which case the relevant provisions of the Ordinance shall be followed.
 - (f) To delegate, from time to time, to any such appointee all or any of the powers and authority of the Board, and to reconstitute, restrict or vary such delegations.
 - (g) To agree upon and pay any expenses in connection with the company's objects and undertakings and pay all the expenses incidental to the formation and regulation of the company.
 - (h) To constitute from time to time committee(s) from among themselves or coopt other persons for the purpose and delegate to them such functions and powers as the Board may see fit to carry out the objects of the company.
 - Subject to the provisions of Section 196 of the Ordinance, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to bor ow and mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and assets (both present and future) or issue securities, whether outright security for any cebt, liability or obligation of the company.
 - (j) To review and guide corporate strategy with in the parameters of the R&D Implementation Framework.

- (k) To determine risk policy, set high level business objectives and monitor performance against objectives, oversee major capital expenditures, acquisitions and divestitures.
- (I) To monitor the effectiveness of the Company's governance practices and make changes as needed.
- (m) To ensure that remuneration of key executive is aligned to the Company's objectives and reflects the objectives of stakeholders.
- (n) To ensure that the appointment of directors is carried out in a fair, open and transparent manner.
- (o) To monitor and actively manage potential conflicts of interests affecting the directors, managers and other stakeholders including misuse of corporate assets and potential abuse in third party transactions.
- (p) To ensure the integrity of the Company's accounting and financial reporting systems, including independent audit and ensuring that systems of control are in place for risk management, financial and operational control and ensure compliance with the relevant law and accounting standards.
- (q) To approve and maintain a succession plan for the chief executive officer and senior executives.
- (r) To design and implement programmes for the orientation of the new directors and continuing education for existing directors or subjects that would assist them in discharging their duties.
- (s) To oversee the process of disclosure and the communication of information to stakeholders.
- (t) To establish committees and delegate authority to committees for performance of specialized Board functions while ensuring that the Sub-Committees do not get involved in the day-to-day operations and management of the Company in relation to matters falling within their respective terms of reference.
- (u) To provide strategic direction for the Compasy by providing guidance, without, however, involving itself in the day-to-day operations and management of the Company.
- (v) To maintain commercial orientation for the Company and actively explore, pursue and exploit commercial opportunities arising out of the research and development projects.
- (w) To approve the business plan, annual budget and the operations manual prepared by the management of the Company.
- (x) To set targets for the Company and review progress while leaving the details for achievement of the targets to the management of the Company.
- (y) To advise the Federal Government for development, modification or refinement of the R&D Implementation Framework.

- (z) To liaison and interact with national and international research and development organisations in the field of information and communication technology.
- (aa) To develop, publish, maintain in force and implement an operations manual setting out the processes and procedures for applications, appraisals, approvals, solicitations, grants, contracts, disbursements, monitoring, modifications, reporting, commercial exploitation and other matters pertaining to projects contemplated under, or pursuant to, the R&D Implementation Framework.
- (bb) To delegate any of the powers with or without restrictions to the Chief Executive of the Company and to withdraw or suspend the delegated powers as deemed fit by the Board.

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BOARD

- 43. The Board shall meet at least once in each quarter of every year, subject thereto meetings of the Board shall be held at such time as the directors shall think fit. All meetings of the Board shall be held at the registered office of the Company or at such other place as the Board shall from time to time ditermine. The meetings of the Board shall be called by the chairman on his own accord or at the request of the Chief Executive (or any three directors) by giving at least seven (7) days notice to the members of the Board.
- 44. At least one-third (1/3) of the total number of directors or five (5) directors whichever is higher, for the time being of the company, shall constitute a quorum.
- 45. Except as otherwise provided by these Articles, every question at meetings of the Board shall be determined by a majority of votes control the directors present, each director having one vote. In case of an equality of votes or tie, the chairman shall have a casting vote in addition to his original vote as a director.
- 46. Minutes of the proceedings of every meeting of the Board and a record of attendance of the directors thereat shall be recorded by the Secretary in a book kept for that purpose. These shall be signed by the chairman of the meeting at which they are read.

47. DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTOR

- a. No Director of the Company shall have any business dealing with the Company or enter into contract with the Company. For the purposes of this Article, the Board shall be sole judge as to what constitutes business dealing. The Director in question shall not vote at any meeting in which the Board of Directors is exercising its jurisdiction under this Article, and if he does so vote, his vote shall not be counted.
- b. No person shall become a Director of the Company if he suffers from any of the disabilities or disqualifications mentioned in Section 187 of the Ordinance and if, already a Director, shall *ipso facto* ceale to hold such office from the date he becomes disqualified or disabled under Section 188 of the Ordinance.

48. RESOLUTION THROUGH CIRCULATION

A resolution in writing signed by all directors for the time being entitled to receive notice of the meeting of directors or affirmed by them in writing shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the directors duly convened and held.

49. CHIEF EXECUTIVE:

The directors may appoint a person to be the Chief Executive of the company and vest in him such powers and functions as they deem fit in relation to the management and administration of the affairs of the company subject to their general supervision and control. The Chief Executive shall be a full time employee of the company and be entitled to all the rights and privileges and subject to all the liabilities of that office.

50. QUALIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE:

No person who is not eligible to become a director of the company under section 187 of the Ordinance, shall be appointed or continue as the Chief Executive of the company.

51. REMOVAL OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE:

The directors by passing resolution by not less than three-fourths of the total number of directors for the time being or the company may by a Special Resolution passed in a general meeting remove a Chief Executive before the expiry of his term in office.

52. MINUTE BOOKS:

The directors shall cause minutes to be duly entered in a book or books provided for the purpose of:

- (a) all resolutions and proceedings of General Meeting(s) and the meeting(s) of directors and Committee(s) of directors, and every member present at any General Meeting and every director present at any meeting of directors or Committee of directors shall put his signature in a book to be kept for that purpose;
- (b) recording the names of the persons present at each meeting of the directors and of any committee of the directors, and the gengral meeting; and
- (c) all orders made by the directors and Committee(s) of directors.

' SECRETARY

- 53. The Secretary shall be appointed (or removed) by the Chairman of the company with the approval of the Board.
- 54. The Secretary shall be responsible for all secretarial functions and shall ensure compliance with respect to requirements of the Ordinance concerning the meetings and record of proceedings of the Board, committees and the general meeting of members, review the applications for admission to membership and the recommendations accompanying the same to ensure that they are in the form prescribed, ensure that all notices required by these Articles or under the Ordinance are duly sent and that all returns required under the Ordinance are duly filed with concerned Company Registration Office.

OPERATIONS MANUAL:

The Company shall develop, publish, maintain in force and implement an operations manual setting out the processes and procedures for applications, appraisals, approvals, solicitations, grants, contracts, disbursements, monitoring, modifications, reporting, commercial exploitation and other matters pertaining to the projects contemplated under, or pursuant to the R&D implementation framework or the policy of the Federal Government as made by the Ministry of Information Technology IT and Telecommunications Division from time to time.

56. COMMITTEES:

The directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such member or members of their body as they think fit and they may from time to time revoke such delegation. Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations that may from time to time be imposed on it by the directors.

57. CHAIRMAN OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

A committee may elect a chairman of its meetings, but, if no such chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the chairman is not present within ten (10) minutes after the time appointed for holding the same or is unwilling to act as chairman, the members present may choose one of them to be the chairman of the meeting.

58. PROCEEDINGS OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members present. In case of an equality of votes, the chairman shall have and exercise a second or casting vote.

59. VALIDITY OF DIRECTORS' ACTS:

All acts done by any meeting of the directors or of a committee of directors, or by any person acting as a director, shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of such directors or persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to the a director.

60. THE SEAL:

The directors shall provide for the safe custody of the seal, which shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the Board or by a committee of directors authorized in that behalf by the directors, and two directors or one director and the Secretary of the company shall sign every instrument to which the seal shall be affixed.

FINANCES

- 61. The funds of the Company shall be applied in defraying the expenses and shall be applicable in or towards the acquisition by purchase, lease or otherwise and furnishing and maintenance of suitable premises and assets for the use of the Company and shall be subject to the general control and direction of the Board.
- 62. No person, except persons duly authorized by the Board and acting within the limits of the authority as conferred, shall have authority to sign any cheque or to enter into

any contract so as thereby to impose any liability on the Company or to pledge the assets of the Company.

ACCOUNTS

63. BOOKS OF ACCOUNT:

The directors shall cause to be kept proper books of account as required under Section 230 of the Ordinance so that such books of account shall be kept at the registered office or at such other place as the directors hink fit as provided in the said section 230 and shall be open to inspection by the directors during business hours.

64. INSPECTION BY MEMBERS:

The directors shall from time to time determine the time and places for inspection of the accounts and books of the company by the members not being directors, and no member (not being a director) shall have any right to inspect any account and book or papers of the company except as conferred by law or authorized by the directors or by the company in general meeting.

65. ANNUAL ACCOUNTS:

The directors shall as required by section 233 of the Ordinance cause to be prepared and to be laid before the company in Annual General Meeting such Balance Sheet and Income and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement duly audited and reports as are required in the Ordinance.

66. COPY OF ACCOUNTS TO BE SENT TO MEMBERS:

A copy of balance sheet and profit and loss account and the Cash flow statement alongwith the reports of directors and Auditors of the company shall, at least twenty-one (21) clear days before the holding of the General Meeting, be sent to all the members and the persons entitled to receive notices of general meetings, in the manners in which notices are to be given as provided in section 50 of the Ordinance.

67. AUDIT:

Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in accordance with Sections 252-254 or 256-258 of the Ordinance.

68. NOTICE TO MEMBERS:

Notice shall be given by the company to members and auditors of the company and other persons entitled to receive notice in accordance with section 50 of the Ordinance.

69. INDEMNITY:

Every officer or agent for the time being of the company may be indemnified out of the assets of the company against any liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, arising out of his dealings in relation to the affairs of the company, except those brought by the company against him in which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or in connection with any application under section 488 in which relief is granted to him by the Court.

Every director, secretary, auditor, trustee, member of a committee, officer, servant, agent, accountant, or other person employed in the business of the Company shall observe strict secrecy representing all transactions of the Company, and the state of account with individuals and in matters relating theret, and shall not reveal any of the matters which may come to his knowledge in the cischarge of his duties except when required so to do by the directors or the Company in general meeting or by a court of law, and except so far as may be necessary in order to comply with any of the provisions herein contained.

WINDING UP

71. In the case of winding up or dissolution of the Company, any surplus assets or property after the satisfaction of all the debts and liabilities shall not be paid or disbursed among the members, but shall be given or transferred to some other institution or institutions having similar objects to those of the Company as decided by the members of the Company in their general meeting by special resolution.

72. SUPPLEMENTARY PROVISIONS RELATING TO TAK:

The company shall abide by and adhere to the followin; rules:

- (i) The company shall get its annual accounts au lited from a firm of Chartered Accountants.
- (ii) The company shall, in the event of its dissolution, after meeting all liabilities, transfer all its assets to an Institution, fund, rust, society or organization, which is an approved non-profit organization, and intimation of such transfer will be given to Commissioner, Central Board of Revenue, within three months of the dissolution.
- (iii) The company shall utilize its money, property or income or any part thereof, solely for promoting its objects.
- (iv) The company shall not pay or transfer any position of its money, property or income, directly by way of dividend, bonus or profit, to any of its members(s) or the relative or relatives of member or members.
- (v) The company shall maintain its banks account: with a scheduled bank or in a post office or national saving organization, National Bank of Pakistan or national commercialized banks.
- (vi) The company shall regularly maintain its books of accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and permit their inspection to the interested members of the public, without any hindrance, at all reasonable times.
- (vii) Without prejudice to the powers conferred on the Commission under section 42 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the association shall not change its memorandum without approval of Commissioner, Income Tax, if it has been approved by him as a non-profit organization.
- (viii) The company shall restrict the money validly set apart or not utilized to twenty five percent (25%) of the income including surplus worked out of amount of donations made to it. Provided that certificate will be provided to the Commissioner, Central Board of Revenue that the amounts so in excess of

the said limit have been invested in Government Securities or any of mutual funds registered with Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan subject to the condition that such deposit / investment in or through the financial institution(s) shall not exceed 1/3rd of the surplus at the end of the year as mentioned.

We, the several, persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below are desirous of being formed into a Company in pursuance of this Articles of Association:-

Name and surname present & former) in full a Block Letters) and NIC Number	Father's <i>l</i> Husband's Name in full	Nationality with any former Nationality	Occupation	Residential Address in full	Signature
INISTRY OF NFORMATION ECHNOLOGY, IT & ELECOMMUNICATI ON DIVISION, BOVERNMENT OF PAKISTAN Through	3			Evacuse Trust Complex, Azhac Khan Road, 4th Floor, F-511 Islamabad	***************************************
MR. FARRAKH QAYYUM 61101-1497754-9	Ch. Abdul Qayyum	Pakistani	Secretary, Ministry of Information Technology, Government of Pakistan	House # 290, Main Double Road, F-10/4, Islamabad	Service of the servic
MR> NOOR-UD-DIN BAQAI 61101-0593291-5	Qamar ud Din Baqai	Pakistani	Member, Telecom, Ministry of Information Technology, Government of Pakistan	House # 237, Street # 35, F 10/1, Islamabad	Monday
MR. ATHER MEHMOOD KHAN 61101-4463715-1	Lal Hussain Akhtar	Pakistani	Additional Finance Secretary, Ministry of Finance, Government	House No. 24 Category II, Street # 10, 1 8/1, ', Islamabad	1 8/

Dated the goth day of November 2006

litness to above signatures			
In Amais.			
MOHAMMAD AWAIS			
MUHAMMAD YUNUS			
PAKISTANI			
ADVOCATE HIGH COURT 61101-9533921-3 H. No. 7-B, St. No. 31, F-8/1, ISLAMABAD			
			֡֡֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜֜